

City Council Business Meeting Minutes November 08, 2022

Mayor: Robert Duncan, Presiding Council President: Mike Caughey, Present

Councilors Present: Kimberly Downey, Adam Keaton, Randy Klemm (via Phone)

Councilors Absent: Robert Boese and Charlotte Thomas

Staff Present: City Administrator Michele Eldridge, Public Works Director Chuck

Scholz, Finance Officer/Deputy City Recorder Cathy Nelson and Utility Billing Supervisor/Building Permit Clerk Carol Canham

Meeting Location: Harrisburg Municipal Center Located at 354 Smith St

CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL by Mayor, Robert Duncan at the hour of 6:30pm.

CONCERNED CITIZEN(S) IN THE AUDIENCE. All in attendance were there for items on the agenda.

THE MATTER OF MEETING WITH A MEMBER REPRESENTATIVE FROM LCSO IF ONE IS AVAILABLE

STAFF REPORT: LCSO rescheduled their appearance to December 13th, 2022. The October and November 2022 Reports will be reviewed then.

In attendance is Officer Mike Lee with Coburg Police Department. Coburg was unable to attend last month's meeting. Office Lee will be reviewing the 3rd Quarter Stats Report for Coburg Police Department. Officer Lee reviewed the report. He commented that the start of the quarter was heavy with community events and that 28 traffic citations were issued in the month of September. Most of the violations issued were for speeding or fail to obey traffic control devices.

 Downey asked how they track warnings. Officer Lee responded they have no record writing system to track throughout the department, but an Officer will record it manually for their information.

THE MATTER OF REVIEWING AN INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT (IGA) BETWEEN THE CITY OF HARRISBURG AND THE DEPARTMENT OF LAND CONSERVATION AND DEVELOPMENT (DLCD)

STAFF REPORT: Eldridge commented this has been a process that started back in 2015 and is being funded from the FEMA Planning Grant and state funding. Eldridge referred to the replacement IGA (ADDENDUM 1) provided tonight stating it was reviewed by the City Attorney, Jim Brewer. His changes can be noted in the red-lined version of **Addendum 1**. Eldridge will send the revised IGA into DLCD for review, however, she commented they might not approve it. Eldridge suggested creating a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) to be used in the future which will be an easier process and will need to be added into the IGA. She noted that if we don't adopt it by the end of the period, then the City wouldn't be covered in the event of an emergency. Eldridge addressed Council asking if there were any questions or suggestions and stated the IGA could be turned into DLCD or tabled until December.

- Caughey commented he was pleased with the changes noted by the City Attorney.
- Eldridge stated this will be tabled until next month's meeting.

THE MATTER OF APPROVING THE HARRISBURG PUBLIC LIBRARY POLICY STAFF REPORT: Nelson referred to page 71 and 78 of the agenda commenting the only changes made were relating to becoming fine free and updating the Code of Conduct Policy.

- Downey asked Nelson if she is pleased with the library being fine free. Nelson responded she was and overall, materials are being returned to the library.
 - Keaton motioned to approve the updated Harrisburg Public Library Policy and was seconded by Caughey. The motion passed unanimously by a vote of 4-0. (Yes: Caughey, Downey, Keaton and Klemm; No: None)

THE MATTER OF APPROVING THE CONSENT LIST No comments or concerns.

- Downey motioned to approve the consent list and was seconded by Caughey.
 The motion passed unanimously by a vote of 4-0 (Yes: Caughey, Downey,
 Keaton and Klemm; No: None) A motion to approve the consent list will approve the following:
 - The Payment Approval Report for October 2022

OTHER ITEMS:

- Press Release: Eldridge commented that the City hasn't received any comments or concerns about the Water Bond Project Press Release.
- HART Resource Center: Eldridge has met with HART, and they will be providing the
 City with a 6-month progress report. HART has also applied to be a member of the TriCounty Chamber of Commerce partially funded by the City. Eldridge commented that
 she has attended some grant webinars and believes there are some that will benefit
 the center with Technical Assistance.
 - Nelson commented that HART's payroll taxes were misrepresented by reflecting net wages and not gross; basically, doubling up on taxes.
 - Caughey asked if those funds are recoverable. Nelson responded that she has not been able to speak with the treasurer about it.
 - Eldridge commented that she is seeing more reaction from HART.
- League of Oregon Cities (LOC): Eldridge commented that herself and Caughey will be attending the meeting tomorrow. She will also be meeting with Patty and Jim with LOC in December, regarding our Support Letter. She stated the cities have come up with some key points for discussion including small cities having an assigned lobbyist, more engagement, and more resources available.

- BNSF: Eldridge stated BNSF has requested a meeting via Zoom, after Thanksgiving and she is hoping Caughey, and Mayor Duncan can attend. City Attorney, Jim Brewer has created an MOU offering a 90-day extension of the franchise. There is a walkthrough meeting this week with Tom Wiser which will include the ODOT Rail and City Engineer, Damien Gilbert.
- Distinguished Service Awards: Eldridge informed Council of some of the local winners.
 Councilor Thomas is receiving the award for Distinguished Service; Harrisburg Public Library will receive the Organization of the Year Award; Grocery Deals the Small Business Award and Hayworth Seed as the Large Business Award.
- Eldridge commented that the Bias Response Report is available if anyone is interested in reviewing.
- Caughey asked if we have a noise ordinance, and Scholz replied we do, but its vague and up for interpretation. Canham asked if there was an issue, and Caughey replied he is asking due to social media posts.
- Caughey asked about the reader board and Eldridge responded the physical signs are up and we are working on the electrical, Wi-Fi connection and then the training for programing.
- Eldridge stated the next meeting will be in December and she wanted to thank all the Veterans in our community for their service.

ADJOURN: With no further discussion, the City Council Business Meeting adjourned hour of 7:18pm.						
 Mayor	City Recorder					

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT

This Agreement is between the State of Oregon acting by and through its Department of Land Conservation and Development ("DLCD") and the City of Harrisburg, an Oregon Municipal Corporation ("CITY"), each a "Party."

1. Authority

This Agreement is authorized by ORS 190.110.

2. Effective Date

This Agreement is effective on the date of the last signature ("Effective Date"), and terminates September 26, 2024, unless terminated earlier in accordance with Section 8.

3. Background

Natural disasters occur when natural hazard events impact people, structures, and the environment. The dramatic increase in the costs associated with natural disasters over the past decades has fostered interest in identifying and implementing effective means of reducing these impacts. Natural hazards mitigation planning is a process for identifying and understanding the hazards facing a jurisdiction and prioritizing actions the jurisdiction can take to reduce injuries and deaths; damage to buildings, critical facilities, and Infrastructure; Interruption in essential services; economic hardship; and environmental harm. Reducing impacts also speeds up recovery and lowers its cost.

The Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) approves Natural Hazards Mitigation Plans (NHMPs) meeting federal requirements at 44 CFR 201. Approval lasts five years. Having a current, FEMA-approved NHMP is a key factor in establishing eligibility for certain FEMA grants that fund natural hazards mitigation planning and projects.

The Linn County Multi-Jurisdictional Natural Hazards Mitigation Plan NHMP (MJNHMP) will expire on May 23, 2023. DLCD has received a Hazard Mitigation Grant Program grant (HMGP-PF-FM-5327) to assist the CITY with updating the Linn County MJNHMP. The grant's Period of Performance, established by FEMA, ends September 26, 2024. The project's targeted completion date is shown on Exhibit A, Scope of Work. While DLCD and the CITY will make every effort to maintain this schedule, it is understood that target dates are subject to change.

4. Purpose

The purposes of this Intergovernmental Agreement are to:

- Formalize a working relationship between DLCD and CITY that is to result in an updated Linn County MJNHMP adopted by the CITY and approved by FEMA;
- (b) Ensure the CITY is aware that the grant supporting this project requires the final deliverable to be a FEMA-approved NHMP, and that to achieve FEMA approval the CITY must not only

Commented [JB1]: First instance of this set of initials

consider, but also adopt an NHMP that FEMA has agreed to approve; and

(c) Ensure the CITY is aware of its responsibility to contribute financially to the Project using non-federal funds, and to track, document, and report their cost share as required.

5. Responsibilities of Parties

(a) Responsibilities of DLCD.

DLCD will provide financial, administrative, and technical assistance to the Natural Hazards Mitigation Plan ("NHMP" or "Plan") Update project described in Exhibit A, Scope of Work, which is incorporated into and made part of this Agreement.

Specific DLCD responsibilities include:

- i. Organizing, leading and managing the planning process;
- ii. Writing the Plan; and
- iii. Administering grant funds.

(b) Responsibilities of CITY.

- i. CITY will appoint a Steering Committee. Members and alternates must have or have been delegated decision-making authority on behalf of their jurisdictions or organizations for this Project. CITY will appoint one of its Steering Committee members to lead the project in partnership with DLCD's Project Manager.
- ii. CITY Staff will recommend that the City Council adopt a plan that FEMA has agreed to approve.
- iii. Specific project responsibilities of the CITY Project Lead include:
 - Assisting DLCD with organizing, leading, and managing the planning process;
 - B. Providing County Assessor's data;
 - C. Providing GIS services;
 - D. Carrying out other responsibilities enumerated in Section 5(b)(iv);
 - Performing any other Project work assigned by Exhibit A: Scope of Work.
- Specific project responsibilities of the Steering Committee members and CITY Project Lead include;
 - A. Attending and actively participating in Steering Committee meetings;
 - B. Providing data and information;
 - C. Engaging with internal and external stakeholders;
 - Executing the Project's public engagement program;

Commented [JB2]: Otherwise this is an unlawful delegation of the City Council's decision to FEMA

- Shepherding the plan through their jurisdictions' respective public adoption processes;
- Tracking, accurately documenting, and reporting cost share as required; and
- G. Performing any other Project work assigned by Exhibit A: Scope of Work.

6. Compensation and Costs

Each Party shall assume its own costs of carrying out the tasks and responsibilities assigned to it under this Agreement.

FEMA does not permit DLCD to sub-grant funds to local or tribal governments. Therefore, DLCD will use the grant funds to provide consulting and technical assistance to the CITY to complete the update.

The federal grant supporting the Project requires a 25% cost share from non-federal funds. The CITY shall commit to providing and documenting cash, in-kind, or a combination of both as its required 25% cost share.

7. Project Contacts

The designees named below shall be the contacts for all the work and services to be performed under this Agreement. A Party may designate a new contact by written notice to the other Parties.

DLCD's Project Contact is:

Pamela Reber, Natural Hazards Planner
Oregon Department of Land Conservation and Development
635 Capitol St. NE, Suite 150
Salem, OR 97301
(971) 304-5505
pamela.reber@dlcd.oregon.gov

CITY OF HARRISBURG's Project Contact is:

Michele Eldridge, City Administrator City of Harrisburg PO Box 378 Harrisburg, OR 97446 (541) 995-2200 meldridge@ci.harrisburg.or.us

8. Termination

(a) This Agreement may be terminated at any time by mutual written agreement of the Parties.

(b) This Agreement may be terminated by either Party with 30 days advance written notice.

9. Non-Discrimination

In carrying out activities under this Agreement, no Party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, national origin, disability, marital status, veteran status, disability or age. CITY shall take affirmative actions to ensure that applicants for employment are employed and that employees are treated during employment, without regard to their race, color religion, sex, sexual orientation, national origin, disability, marital status, veteran status, disability or age. Such action shall include but not be limited to the following: employment, upgrading, demotion, or transfer; recruitment or recruitment advertising; layoff of termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for training, including apprenticeship.

10. Non-Appropriation

DLCD's obligation to perform its duties under this Agreement is conditioned upon DLCD receiving funding, appropriations, limitations, allotments, or other expenditure authority sufficient to allow DLCD, in the exercise of its reasonable administrative discretion, to meet its obligations under this Agreement. Nothing in this Agreement may be construed as permitting any violation of Article XI, Section 7 of the Oregon Constitution or any law limiting the activities, liabilities or monetary obligations of DLCD.

As this intergovernmental agreement extends across fiscal years, CITY's obligation to perform under this agreement is contingent upon the City Council adopting sufficient appropriations.

11. Representations and Warranties

The CITY represents and warrants that the making and performance by the CITY of this Agreement:

- (a) Have been duly authorized by the CITY;
- (b) Do not and will not violate any provision of any applicable law, rule, regulation, or order of any court, regulatory commission, board, or other administrative agency or any provision of the CITY's charters or other organizational documents; and
- (c) Do not and will not result in the breach of, or constitute a default or require any consent under any other agreement or instrument to which the CITY is party or by which the CITY may be bound or affected.

No authorization, consent, license, approval of, or filing or registration with or notification to any governmental body or regulatory or supervisory authority is required with or notification to any governmental body or regulatory or supervisory authority is required for the execution, delivery or performance by the CITY of this Agreement, other than those that have already been obtained.

Commented [JB3]: Current council cannot bind future council actions and even in-kind contribution requires City to pay staff

DLCD represents and warrants that the making and performance by DLCD of this Agreement:

- (a) Have been duly authorized by the State of Oregon;
- (b) Do not and will not violate any provision of any applicable law, rule, regulation, or order of any court, regulatory commission, board, or other administrative agency or any provision of the DLCD's authority from the State of Oregon or other organizational documents; and
- (c) Do not and will not result in the breach of, or constitute a default or require any consent under any other agreement or instrument to which DLCD or the State of Oregon is party or by which DLCD or the State of Oregon may be bound or affected.

No authorization, consent, license, approval of, or filing or registration with or notification to any governmental body or regulatory or supervisory authority is required with or notification to any governmental body or regulatory or supervisory authority is required for the execution, delivery or performance by the DLDCD of this Agreement, other than those that have already been obtained

12. Records

Parties and their duly authorized representatives shall have access to the books, documents, and records which are directly pertinent to Agreement for the purpose of making audit, examination, excerpts, and transcript. This does not require either Party to provide documents that are legally privileged or otherwise exempt from disclosure under the Oregon Public Records Law, ORS 192.311 to 192.478.

13. Contribution

If any third party makes any claim or brings any action, suit or proceeding alleging a tort as now or hereafter defined in ORS 30.260 (a "Third Party Claim") against a Party (the "Notified Party") with respect to which the other Parties (the "Other Parties") may have liability, the Notified Party shall promptly notify the Other Party in writing of the Third Party Claim and deliver to the Other Party, along with the written notice, a copy of the claim, process and all legal pleadings with respect to the Third Party Claim that have been received by the Notified Party. Each Party is entitled to participate in the defense of a Third Party Claim, and to defend a Third Party Claim with counsel of its own choosing. Receipt by the Other Parties of the notice and copies required in this Section and a meaningful opportunity for the Other Parties to participate in the investigation, defense and settlement of the Third Party Claim with counsel of its own choosing are conditions precedent to the Other Parties' contribution obligation under this Agreement with respect to the Third Party Claim.

With respect to a Third Party Claim for which DLCD is jointly liable with the Notified Party (or would be if joined in the Third Party Claim), DLCD shall contribute to the amount of expenses (including attorney fees), judgments, fines and amounts paid in settlement actually and reasonably incurred and paid or payable by the Notified Party in such proportion as is appropriate to reflect the relative fault of DLCD on the one hand and of the Notified Party on the other hand in connection with the events

Commented [ME4]: The addition of this paragraph simply provider reciprocal assurance. State wants the City to warrant it has authority to do certain things, and the City is asking for the same.

that resulted in such expenses, judgments, fines or settlement amounts, as well as any other relevant equitable considerations. The relative fault of DLCD on the one hand and of the Notified Party on the other hand shall be determined by reference to, among other things, the Parties' relative intent, knowledge, access to information, and opportunity to correct or prevent the circumstances resulting in such expenses, judgments, fines or settlement amounts. DLCD's contribution amount in any instance is capped to the same extent it would have been capped under Oregon law if the State had sole liability in the proceeding.

With respect to a Third Party Claim for which a Party is jointly liable with DLCD (or would be if joined in the Third Party Claim), the Other Party or Parties shall contribute to the amount of expenses (including attorney fees), judgments, fines and amounts paid in settlement actually and reasonably incurred and paid or payable by DLCD in such proportion as is appropriate to reflect the relative fault of the Other Party or Parties on the one hand and of DLCD on the other hand in connection with the events that resulted in such expenses, judgments, fines or settlement amounts, as well as any other relevant equitable considerations. The relative fault of the Other Party or Parties on the one hand and of DLCD on the other hand shall be determined by reference to, among other things, the Parties' relative intent, knowledge, access to information and opportunity to correct or prevent the circumstances resulting in such expenses, judgments, fines or settlement amounts. The Other Party's or Parties' contribution amount in any instance is capped to the same extent it would have been capped under Oregon law if it had sole liability in the proceeding.

With respect to a Third Party Claim for which the CITY is jointly liable with the Notified Party (or would be if joined in the Third Party Claim), the CITY shall contribute to the amount of expenses (including attorney fees), judgments, fines and amounts paid in settlement actually and reasonably incurred and paid or payable by the Notified Party in such proportion as is appropriate to reflect the relative fault of the CITY on the one hand and of the Notified Party on the other hand in connection with the events that resulted in such expenses, judgments, fines or settlement amounts, as well as any other relevant equitable considerations. The relative fault of the CITY on the one hand and of the Notified Party on the other hand shall be determined by reference to, among other things, the Parties' relative intent, knowledge, access to information, and opportunity to correct or prevent the circumstances resulting in such expenses, judgments, fines or settlement amounts. The CITY's contribution amount in any instance is capped to the same extent it would have been capped under Oregon law if the CITY had sole liability in the proceeding.

With respect to a Third Party Claim for which a Party is jointly liable with the CITY (or would be if joined in the Third Party Claim), the Other Party or Parties shall contribute to the amount of expenses (including attorney fees), judgments, fines and amounts paid in settlement actually and reasonably incurred and paid or payable by the CITY in such proportion as is appropriate to reflect the relative fault of the Other Party or Parties on the one hand and of the CITY on the other hand in connection with the events that resulted in such expenses, judgments, fines or settlement amounts, as well as any other relevant equitable considerations. The relative fault of the Other Party or Parties on the one hand and of the CITY on the other hand shall be determined by reference to, among other things, the Parties' relative intent, knowledge, access to information and opportunity to correct or prevent

the circumstances resulting in such expenses, judgments, fines or settlement amounts. The Other Party's or Parties' contribution amount in any instance is capped to the same extent it would have been capped under Oregon law if it had sole liability in the proceeding. Under no circumstances will CITY's obligation under this agreement for contribution or to a third party or to the Other Party or Parties exceed the Oregon Tort Claims Act limit for local governments.

Commented (185): Reciprocal, but also tied to our lower tort claim limits—we don't want to have to pay the state's higher limit (and probably are not insured to do so)

14. Subcontracting and Assignment

The CITY acknowledges that DLCD intends to hire contractors to perform tasks and responsibilities related to the deliverables listed in the Scope of Work, Exhibit A to this Agreement. The CITY shall not enter into any subcontract for any other work listed under this Agreement without written consent of DLCD.

15. Governing Law, Consent to Jurisdiction

This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Oregon without regard to principles of conflicts of law. Any claim, action, suit or proceeding (collectively "Claim") between DLCD or any other agency or department of the State of Oregon, or both, and the CITY that arises from or relates to this Agreement shall be brought and conducted solely and exclusively within the Circuit Court of Marion County for the State of Oregon; provided, however, if a Claim must, as mandated by federal law, be brought in a federal forum, then unless otherwise prohibited by law it shall be brought and conducted solely and exclusively within the United States District Court for the District of Oregon. In no event shall this Section be construed as a waiver by any Party of any form of defense or immunity, whether sovereign immunity, governmental immunity, immunity based on the eleventh amendment to the Constitution of the United States or otherwise, to or from any Claim or from the jurisdiction of any court.

16. Indemnification

Except as provided in Section 13 of this Agreement, each Party shall defend, save, hold harmless, and indemnify the other Party and the other Party's agencies, subdivisions, officers, directors, employees and agents from and against all claims, suits, actions, loses damages, liabilities, costs and expenses of any nature whatsoever (Claims), including attorney fees, resulting from, arising out of, or relating to the acts or omissions of the indemnifying Party's officers, employees, or agents under this Agreement. Any indemnity by DLCD under this Section shall be subject to the limitations of Article XI, Section 7 of the Oregon Constitution and the Oregon Tort Claims Act, 30.260 to 30.300. Any indemnity by the CITY shall be subject to the limitations of Article XI, Section 12 of the Oregon Constitution and the limitations for local governments under the Oregon Tort Claims Act, ORS 30.260 to 30.300, but in no event shall exceed the value of the CITY's 25% match under this agreement.

17. Insurance

Each Party shall be responsible for providing workers' compensation insurance as required by law for its covered workers. Neither Party shall be required to provide or show proof of self-insurance, workers' compensation or any other insurance coverage.

18. Severability

If any term or provision of this Agreement is declared by a court of competent jurisdiction to be illegal or in conflict with any law, the validity of the remaining terms and provisions shall not be affected, and the rights and obligations of the Parties shall be construed and enforced as if the Agreement did not contain the particular term or provision held to be invalid. In such event, the Parties intend that the conflict not invalidate the other provisions of this Agreement and the Parties shall negotiate in good faith to agree on replacement language for the offending term or provision that will be consistent with the purposes of this Agreement.

19. Compliance With Law

In connection with their activities under this Agreement, the Parties shall comply with all applicable federal, state and local law.

20. Force Majeure

Neither Party shall be held responsible for delay or default caused by fire, riot, acts of God, and war which are beyond its reasonable control. The affected Party shall, however, make all reasonable efforts to remove or eliminate such a cause of delay or default and shall, upon cessation of the cause, diligently pursue performance of its obligations under this Agreement.

21. No Third Party Beneficiary

DLCD and the DISTRICT are the only Parties to this Agreement and are the only Parties entitled to enforce its terms. Nothing contained in Agreement gives or shall be construed to give or provide any benefit, direct, indirect, or otherwise, to third parties. The Contractors retained by DLCD are expressly excluded as parties or beneficiaries to this Agreement and are barred from enforcing the terms of this Agreement.

22. Merger, Waiver and Modification

This Agreement and all exhibits and attachments, if any, constitute the entire agreement between the Parties on the subject matter hereof. There are no understandings, agreements, or representations, oral or written, not specified herein regarding this Agreement. No waiver or consent under this Agreement binds either Party unless in writing and signed by both Parties. Such waiver or consent, if made, is effective only in the specific instance and for the specific purpose given. EACH PARTY, BY SIGNATURE OF ITS AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE, HEREBY ACKNOWLEDGES THAT IT HAS

READ THIS AGREEMENT, UNDERSTANDS IT, AND AGREES TO BE BOUND BY ITS TERMS AND CONDITIONS.

23. Amendments

The terms of this Agreement may not be altered, modified, supplemented or otherwise amended, except by written agreement of the Parties. Any amendment to this Agreement shall require the signatures of the approving authorities of both Parties.

24. Acknowledgment of Funds and Copyright

(a) Acknowledgment of Funds.

Both Parties shall acknowledge their use of federal funding when issuing statements, press releases, requests for proposals, bid invitations, and other documents describing projects or programs funded in whole or in part with federal funds.

(b) Copyright.

Both Parties must affix the applicable copyright notices of 17 USC Section 401 or 402 and an acknowledgment of Government sponsorship (including sub-grant number) to any work first produced under a federal award unless the work includes any information that is otherwise controlled by the Government (e.g., classified information or other information subject to national security or export control laws or regulations). For any scientific, technical, or other copyright work based on or containing data first produced under this Agreement, including those works published in academic, technical or professional journals, symposia proceedings, or similar works, Parties grant the Government a royalty-free, nonexclusive and irrevocable license to reproduce, display, distribute copies, perform, disseminate, or prepare derivative works, and to authorize others to do so, for Government purposes in all such copyrighted works.

25. Survival

All provisions concerning the limitation of liability, indemnity, and conflicts of interest shall survive the termination of this Agreement for any cause.

26. Interpretation

The Parties agree that the provisions of this Agreement shall not be construed in favor of or against any Party based on the source of its drafting or any other circumstances.

27. Counterparts

This Agreement may be executed in several counterparts, all of which when taken together shall constitute one agreement, notwithstanding that both Parties are not signatories to the same counterpart. Each copy of the Agreement so executed constitutes an original.

N WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement as of the dates set forth below.					
CITY OF HARRISBURG	APPROVED AS TO FORM:				
Michele Eldridge, City Administrator	Name & Title				
Date	Date				
DEPARTMENT OF LAND CONSERVATION AND DEVELOPMENT					
Dr. Brenda G. Bateman, Director					
Date					

Exhibit A

Multi-Jurisdictional Natural Hazards Mitigation Plan (MJNHMP) Update for:

Linn County and the Cities of Brownsville, Gates, Halsey, Harrisburg, Lebanon, Lyons, Millersburg, Scio, Sodaville, Tangent, and Waterloo

Scope of Work

PROJECT DESCRIPTION

The purpose of this Scope of Work (SOW) is to review and update Linn County's Multi-Jurisdictional NHMP (MJNHMP) such that it is adopted by Linn County (COUNTY); the Cities of Brownsville, Gates, Halsey, Harrisburg, Lebanon, Lyons, Millersburg, Scio, Sodaville, Tangent, and Waterloo (CITIES); each a "JURISDICTION" and collectively "JURISDICTIONS," and ultimately approved by the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA). The update process may include drafting new NHMPs for special districts who have not participated previously.

The Oregon Department of Land Conservation and Development (DLCD) and COUNTY will lead the MJNHMP update process in partnership. DLCD and JURISDICTIONS will participate and execute responsibilities and tasks as set forth in this SOW.

This project is funded by a FEMA Hazard Mitigation Grant Program (HMGP) mitigation planning grant.
This grant must culminate in an NHMP that is adopted by JURISDICTIONS and approved by FEMA.
Therefore, JURISDICTIONS agree not only to consider but also to adopt the NHMP that FEMA has agreed to approve.

The planning process will be open and transparent. All meetings will be duly advertised and open to the public. Each Steering Committee (SC) agenda will include time for public input.

PHASE 1: ORGANIZE

Purpose

The purpose of Phase 1 is to organize and develop content for project initiation.

Task 1: Prepare a Draft Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA)
The purpose of the IGA is to formalize a working relationship between DLCD and JURISDICTIONS

The purpose of the IGA is to formalize a working relationship between DLCD and JURISDICTION to execute an update of the Linn County MJNHMP; ensure that each jurisdiction adopts and

obtains FEMA approval of the updated MJNHMP; and ensure that each jurisdiction provides cost share and documents its cost share contribution as required.

DELIVERABLES

DLCD 1. Draft IGA for review by COUNTY

Target Date: May 2022

Task 2: Prepare a Draft Scope of Work (SOW)

DLCD will draft a SOW intended to produce an MJNHMP meeting the requirements of the Code of Federal Regulations, Title 44, Part 201.6 (44 CFR 201.6) and therefore approvable by FEMA.

DELIVERABLES

DLCD 1. Draft SOW

Target Date: May 2022

Develop a Project Schedule Task 3:

DLCD will develop a project schedule setting target dates for SC meetings, public engagement opportunities, public review and comment periods, state and federal review processes, and local adoption proceedings.

A minimum of two opportunities for the public to comment will be included, one to review the Draft Risk Assessment and one to review at least the Draft Mitigation Strategy and Plan Maintenance Process, and as circumstances warrant potentially the entire Draft MJNHMP. Both opportunities will be offered prior to finalizing the plan for approval by each of JURISDICTIONS' respective boards and councils. While only these two opportunities are required, providing as many opportunities as possible is encouraged, as greater public participation benefits the community and strengthens the MJNHMP.

"The public" is understood to include - but not be limited to - citizens and residents, neighboring communities, local and regional agencies involved in hazard mitigation activities; agencies that have the authority to regulate development, businesses, academia, and other private and nonprofit interests.

DELIVERABLES

DLCD 1. Draft Project Schedule

Target Date: May 2022

Task 4 Coordinate with COUNTY

The following tasks will be accomplished collaboratively by DLCD and COUNTY for review and agreement by the SC at its organizational meeting (Task 6).

Meet remotely or in person with COUNTY and:

- A. Discuss the Intergovernmental Agreement.
- B. Discuss the Scope of Work and revise as necessary or appropriate.
- C. Discuss the current MJNHMP's strengths and opportunities for improvement and recommend a strategy for addressing them.
- D. Determine the scope of the update.
- Discuss the Draft Project Schedule (Task 3, Deliverable 1) and revise as necessary or appropriate;
- F. Discuss Table 1: Allocation of Basic Responsibilities and Tasks and revise as necessary or appropriate. These basic responsibilities and tasks will be performed throughout the duration of the project in addition to other others described and deliverables assigned in Tasks 1 through 16.
- G. Determine the method for and roles of DLCD and COUNTY in inviting cities, special districts, Tribes, and other interested parties to participate in the planning process.
- H. Designate SC members and alternates. <u>SC members and alternates must have or have been delegated authority to make decisions and act on behalf of their jurisdictions, departments or organizations for the purposes of this project;</u>
- Draft a list of stakeholders, technical advisors, and other interested parties.
 - a. The list must include at a minimum representatives of the following sectors: (a) Emergency Management; (b) Economic Development; (c) Land Use and Development; (d) Housing; (e) Health and Social Services; (f) Infrastructure (including transportation and other community lifelines); and (g) Natural and Cultural Resources.
 - Community lifelines include: (a) Safety and Security; (b) Food, Water, and Shelter; (c) Health and Medical; (d) Energy; (e) Communications; (f) Transportation; and (g) Hazardous Material.
 - b. Local dam owners and/or the Oregon Dam Safety Program.
 - c. Representatives of each of the following must be invited to participate in the planning process: (a) Local and regional agencies involved in hazard mitigation activities; (b) Agencies that have the authority to regulate development; (c) Neighboring communities; (d) Representatives of businesses, academia, and other private organizations; (e) Representatives of non-profit organizations, including community-based organizations, that work directly with and/or provide support to underserved communities and socially vulnerable populations, among others.

Determine how to engage them in the planning process (e.g., Steering Committee, Technical Advisory Committee, one-to-one discussions, focus groups, etc.) and the roles of DLCD and COUNTY in inviting their participation. Identify and employ methods to overcome barriers and support meaningful engagement for all.

- J. Prepare a draft Public Engagement Program for SC discussion and finalization.
- K. Develop a Communication Protocol to ensure clear and effective communication.

!able 1: ALLOCATION of BASIC RESPONSIBILITIES and TASKS

Responsibility/Task	DLCD	COUNTY	CITIES	SPECIAL DISTRICTS
Steering and Technical Advisory Committee Meetings				DISTRICTS
 Prepare and distribute agenda 7 days prior to meetings via email. If a SC or TAC member does not have access to email, JURISDICTIONS will ensure the member receives a hard copy 5 days prior to meetings. 	x	Assist	Assist	Assist
Prepare handouts. If appropriate, distribute handouts 7 days prior to meetings via email. If a SC or TAC member does not have access to email, JURISDICTIONS will ensure the member receives a hard copy 5 days prior to meetings.	x	Assist	Assist	Assist
 Provide language for public notice of meetings if requested. 	x	Assist		
Lead and facilitate meetings.	Х	Assist		
Prepare and distribute meeting notes.	Х			
 Engage with local internal and external stakeholders about the project and bring their input back to the committee discussions. 	Assist	х	x	х
Public Engagement Program				
Execute Public Engagement Program.	Assist	X	Х	Х
 Lead public engagement meetings and events. 	Assist	Х	Х	X
Facilitate public engagement meetings and events.	Х	Assist	Assist	Assist
 Provide public notice of meetings and events through a variety of means. 	Assist	х	Х	х
 Shepherd MJNHMP through Planning Commission, Board and Council work sessions and adoption process. 	Assist	х	Х	х
Plan Development				
 Gather hazard and vulnerability data, existing plans, studies, reports, and technical information. 	х	х	х	х
Provide information on climate change and its influence on hazards.	х			
Provide GIS services.	Assist	Х	X	Х
Provide assessor data.		Х		
Provide other data and information.	Assist	х	Х	Х
Analyze data.	Х	Assist	Assist	Assist
Write plan sections.	Х	Assist	Assist	Assist
Review plan sections.	Х	х	Х	X

Commented [JB6]: Harnsburg doesn't have in-house GIS, rt contracts with County—Is it expected to pay for County work under this agreement?

Commented [JB7R6]: This really is just a question about our obligation

Commented [MEBR6]* No, we haven't had to pay for any GIS services in the past, and we have no agreement or stipulation requiring us to do so. The County will be preparing their own GIS for this project, and have always incorporated the small cities in the system.

Page 16

Responsibility/Task	DLCD	COUNTY	CITIES	SPECIAL DISTRICTS
Edit plan sections.	Х	Assist	Assist	Assist
• Finalize plan.	Х			
Administrative Functions				
 Publish notice of meetings and events 7-10 days prior to date of occurrence. 		х	X	х
 Print agenda, sign-in sheet and handouts for meetings. DLCD will print color and 11x17 handouts only if none of the JURISDICTIONS has capability and no commercial printer with capability is reasonably available. 	Assist	x	x	х
 Develop and maintain during the update and after completion an interactive project web page and link to that page on the jurisdiction's home page. 		х	х	x
 Establish and maintain a listserv, email service, or dedicated email address accessible on the project web page for communication with the public (e.g., distribute news, receive comments). 		х	x	х
 Jurisdictions without web access will commit to other methods for ensuring the project information is made available to the public in a timely manner. 		х	х	x
 Track and accurately report cost-share in the required format at least quarterly by the deadline set by DLCD. 	Assist	х	х	х
 Document the planning process by keeping copies of all agendas, sign-in sheets, notices, publications, web page updates, etc. for inclusion in the updated MJNHMP. 	х	х	х	х
Monitor and adjust project schedule.	Х	Assist		
 Handle Logistics (space reservations, supplies, copies, audio/visual equipment, etc.) for Steering Committee meetings, public engagement meetings and events, etc. occurring in your jurisdiction. 		х	х	х

DELIVERABLES

- DLCD 1. Meeting notes memorializing decisions of Task 4
 - 2. Revised Draft Scope of Work
 - 3. Revised MJNHMP Review and Strategy Memo
 - 4. Revised Project Schedule
 - 5. Revised Table 1: ALLOCATION of BASIC RESPONSIBILITIES and TASKS
 - 6. Draft Public Engagement Program

- 7. Draft Communication Protocol
- 8. Cost Share Documentation Forms and Instructions

COUNTY

- 1. Draft Steering Committee Roster
- 2. Initial Draft Stakeholder Roster

Target Date: June – August 2022

Task 5 Invite and Confirm Participants

In accordance with the method and roles determined in Task 4, (A) invite cities and special districts, Tribes, and other interested parties to participate and appoint SC members and alternates. Members will serve as their jurisdictions', tribe's, or organization's official contact for the project; (B) Provide the IGA and Draft SOW to CITIES and DISTRICTS for review, noting that the IGA is not open to substantive revisions; and (C) invite stakeholders to participate. Confirm responses.

If necessary to meet time and budget constraints, DLCD and COUNTY will decide collaboratively and in consultation with the special districts which of them will be included in the updated Linn County MJNHMP. Others will be invited to participate and may leverage their participation to support development of addenda for later inclusion into the Linn County MJNHMP or into a stand-alone NHMP.

DELIVERABLES

COUNTY 1. Final Roster of Steering Committee members and alternates

2. Second Draft Stakeholder or TAC Roster

Target Date: June - August 2022

Task 6 Hold Organizational SC Meeting

The purpose of this meeting is to finalize preparations for updating the MJNHMP during Phase 2. DLCD and COUNTY will explain the project background, purpose, and requirements and will discuss with the SC the project participant roles, responsibilities, and expectations.

DLCD and COUNTY will lead the SC through discussion of the deliverables of Tasks 4 and 5 and note any revisions.

The SC will review the IGA and SOW and establish a date by which each jurisdiction will sign.

Each JURISDICTION will identify a person responsible for cost share tracking and reporting.

Each JURISDICTION will identify a person responsible for developing and maintaining an up-todate project website or otherwise ensuring that project information is made available to the community in a timely manner.

DELIVERABLES

- DLCD 1. Final Scope of Work
 - 2. Final Project Schedule
 - 3. Final SC Roster
 - 4. Final Stakeholder or TAC Roster
 - 5. Final Table 1, Allocation of Basic Responsibilities and Tasks
 - 6. Final Communication Protocol
 - 7. Final Public Engagement Plan
 - 8. Cost Share Documentation Forms and Instructions

Target Date: June - August 2022

- SC 1. Person responsible for cost share tracking and reporting for each JURISDICTION
 - Person responsible for developing and maintaining and up-to-date project website or otherwise ensuring project information is made available to the public in a timely manner for each jurisdiction
 - 3. Signed IGA

Target Date: June - August 2022

PHASE 2: UPDATE THE LINN COUNTY MULTI-JURISDICTIONAL NHMP

Purpose

The purpose of Phase 2 is to update the current Linn County MJNHMP such that it meets the requirements of 44 CFR 201.6 and is therefore approvable by FEMA.

Task 7 Review and Update the Risk Assessment

DLCD will lead the SC in reviewing and updating the risk assessment. For each jurisdiction, the updated risk assessment will, to the extent data is available:

- A. Describe the type, location, and extent (intensity) of each of the natural hazards to which it is subject and how they may be influenced by climate change. This includes the natural hazards in the existing MJNHMP, and any additional natural hazards added during this MJNHMP update. High Hazard Potential Dams (HHPDs) must be included and treated as a natural hazard. Information shared by the Oregon Dam Safety Program and/or local dam owners must be described. If there is no risk to any JURISDICTION from HHPDs, as statement explaining the lack of risk must be included.
- B. Identify previous occurrences of each hazard with an emphasis on significant events. At a minimum, this includes any state and federal major disaster declarations for the planning area since the last update.
- C. Assess probability of future occurrence of each hazard, including the effects of future conditions, including climate change, on the type, location and range of anticipated Intensities of identified hazards.
- D. Describe the geographic (political and physical), social, economic, cultural and historic characteristics, land use, and development trends.
- E. Describe changes in development that have occurred in hazard-prone areas and how they have increased or decreased vulnerability since approval of the previous plan. "Changes in development" means recent development, potential development, or conditions that may affect the risks and vulnerabilities of the jurisdictions, or shifts in the needs of underserved communities or gaps in social equity. It may also include changes in local policies, standards, codes, regulations, land use regulations and other conditions.
- F. Identify estimated numbers and types of NFIP-insured structures that have sustained repetitive flood damages.
- G. Assess and describe the potential impacts on the JURISDICTIONS and identified assets including the effects of climate change, changes in population patterns, and changes in land use and development. Assess potential dollar losses to buildings, repetitive flood loss structures, infrastructure, and critical facilities from each hazard.
- H. Assess vulnerability to each hazard. Describe the current and future assets (people, structures, systems, natural resources, cultural resources, historic resources, and activities that have value to the community), and others defined by the JURISDICTIONS within identified hazard-prone locations that are at risk from the impacts of the identified hazards.
- To the extent reasonable based on limitations of data and analysis, present findings and indicate mitigation priorities.

DELIVERABLES

SC

 Plans, studies, reports, technical data and information available for review and potential incorporation into the risk assessment

DLCD

- Estimated numbers and types of NFIP-insured structures in each jurisdiction including those having sustained repetitive losses and severe repetitive losses. If necessary, provide Routine Use Letter (Use O) to FEMA Region X to obtain additional information.
- Coordinate and conduct group or individual meetings with cities, special districts, or tribes, if needed.

Target Date: September 2022 - December 2023

COUNTY 1. Coordinate up to two SC meetings.

Assist DLCD with coordinating and facilitating CITIES or DISTRICTS group meeting, if requested.

Target Dates: September 2022 - December 2023

DLCD 1. Initial draft risk assessment for SC and public review

Target Dates: January 2023 - February 2023

Task 8 Public Review of Risk Assessment

DLCD will assist JURISDICTIONS in developing and executing at least one opportunity for the public to comment on the draft risk assessment. "The public" is understood to include – but not be limited to – citizens and residents, neighboring communities, local and regional agencies involved in hazard mitigation activities; agencies that have the authority to regulate development, businesses, academia, and other private and non-profit interests.

DELIVERABLES

SC 1. At least one opportunity for public comment completed.

Target Date(s): March 2023 - April 2023

DLCD 1. Draft comment matrix containing public comments and draft responses

for SC review

Target Date: April 2023 - May 2023

DLCD 1. Final comment and response matrix

Second draft risk assessment incorporating public comments and final comment and response matrix

Target Date: May 2023 - December 2023

Task 9 Review and Update the Mitigation Strategy

DLCD will lead the SC in reviewing and updating the mitigation strategy. The mitigation strategy is the blueprint for reducing the potential losses and vulnerabilities identified through the risk assessment. The mitigation strategy sets mitigation goals; establishes and prioritizes mitigation actions for each jurisdiction; establishes an implementation strategy for accomplishing each action; analyzes the capabilities of each jurisdiction for carrying out its mitigation actions; and describes a process for integrating the content of the MJNHMP into other planning mechanisms. Multi-jurisdictional mitigation actions may be established by some or all of the jurisdictions. For each JURISDICTION, the mitigation strategy will:

- A. Establish mitigation goals consistent with the hazards identified in the risk assessment that explain what is to be achieved by implementing the mitigation strategy.
- B. Assess each jurisdiction's mitigation capabilities. This must include a discussion of the existing building codes and land use and development ordinances or regulations and a description of the jurisdictions' abilities to expand on and improve their capabilities. The capability assessment provides a rational for which mitigation projects can be undertaken.
- C. Describe and include required evidence of each JURISDICTION'S participation in the NFIP and continued compliance with its requirements. Discuss CRS activities and issues raised during community assistance and monitoring activities.
- D. Document status (complete, ongoing, no longer relevant, included in updated plan) of mitigation actions in the current MJNHMP highlighting mitigation progress and successes.
- E. Identify and discuss any changes in mitigation priorities.
- F. Analyze a comprehensive range of potential mitigation actions that specifically address the vulnerabilities and impacts identified in the risk assessment. Revise and add new mitigation actions reflecting any changes in mitigation priorities and emphasizing new and existing buildings and infrastructure. Consider mitigation actions that benefit underserved communities and socially vulnerable populations. Mitigation actions must be clearly linked to the vulnerabilities and impacts identified in the risk assessment.
- G. Prioritize mitigation actions. Prioritization will include a general, qualitative cost/benefit assessment for mitigation projects.
- H. Establish an implementation strategy (responsible party, potential funding sources, expected time frames) for each mitigation action.

Deliverables

SC

- 1. Information about participation in and continued compliance with NFIP
 - 2. Information for and participation in capability assessment

Page 22

3. Information about planning mechanisms and timeline for integration

Target Date: February 2023

COUNTY 1. Coordinate up to three SC meetings for Tasks 10 and 11 together.

Target Dates: February - June 2023

DLCD 1. Initial Draft Mitigation Strategy for SC, and public review

Target Dates: June 2023

Task 10 Review and Update the Plan Maintenance Process
DLCD will assist JURISDICTIONS in reviewing the plan maintenance process and revising it as necessary. For each jurisdiction, the Plan Maintenance Process will:

- A. Describe the method and schedule for monitoring (tracking mitigation actions), evaluating (assessing effectiveness of achieving the stated purpose), and updating (reviewing and revising the plan) the mitigation plan within a five-year cycle. Identify how, when, and by whom the plan will be monitored, evaluated, and updated.
- B. Describe how the jurisdictions will continue public participation during the plan maintenance process.
- C. Describe the JURISDICTIONS' processes for integrating the plan's data information and hazard mitigation goals and actions into other planning mechanisms. Identify the planning mechanisms in accordance with the capability assessment.
- D. When updating the plan, explain how the JURISDICTIONS have integrated information from the MJNHMP into other planning mechanisms.
- E. Describe how the plan was revised due to changes in priorities.

DELIVERABLES

DLCD

- 1. Initial Draft Plan Maintenance Process for SC review
- 2. Second Draft Plan Maintenance Process incorporating SC comments for public review

Target Date(s): July -August 2023 (initial) February 2024 (second)

Task 11 Public Review of Mitigation Strategy and Plan Maintenance Process DLCD will assist JURISDICTIONS in developing and executing at least one opportunity for the public to comment on at minimum the Draft Mitigation Strategy and Plan Maintenance Process, and as circumstances warrant potentially the entire Draft MJNHMP. Therefore, this task may occur at this point in the process or later, but not later than between Tasks 13 and 14.

"The public" is understood to include – but not be limited to – citizens and residents, neighboring communities, local and regional agencies involved in hazard mitigation activities; agencies that have the authority to regulate development, businesses, academia, and other private and non-profit interests.

DELIVERABLES

SC 1. At least one opportunity for public comment completed.

Target Date(s): September - October 2023

DLCD 1. Draft comment matrix containing public comments and draft responses

for SC review

Target Date: October - November 2023

DLCD 1. Final comment and response matrix incorporating SC comments

2. Second Draft Mitigation Strategy and Plan Maintenance Process incorporating public comments and final comment and response matrix

Target Date: April 2024

Task 12 Document the Planning Process

DLCD will assist JURISDICTIONS in documenting the planning process. Copies of agendas, sign-in sheets, notices, publications, web page updates, etc. will be included in the updated MJNHMP. For each jurisdiction, the Planning Process chapter will:

- A. Describe how the plan was prepared, who was included and how they participated, how the public was involved, and the opportunity for all entities listed in Task 4, Item I to be involved in the planning process.
- B. Describe opportunities for public comment during drafting and prior to plan approval and how public feedback was included throughout the planning process.
- C. Describe how plans, studies, reports, technical data and information were incorporated (referenced or included). NFIP regulatory flood mapping products must be incorporated.
- D. Include documentation of the planning process.

DELIVERABLES

SC 1. Provide copies of web page updates, notices, publications, etc.

DLCD 1. Initial Draft Planning Process chapter and documentation for SC review

2. Second Draft Planning Process chapter incorporating SC comments

Target Date(s): May 2022 – July 2024

Task 13 Review and Update Remaining Chapters

DLCD will assist the SC in reviewing and updating any remaining chapters or sections of the current MJNHMP and deciding if there is anything more that needs to be drafted. These may include an Executive Summary, Introduction, lists of tables and figures, glossary, list of acronyms, appendices, etc.

DELIVERABLES

- DLCD 1. Initial draft of remaining chapters or sections for SC review
 - 2. Second draft of remaining chapters or sections incorporating SC comments

Target Date(s): October 2023 - April 2024

Task 14 Finalize Draft MJNHMP for State and Federal Review
DLCD will edit the entire document and add a cover, title page, acknowledgements, page
numbers, FEMA funding credit, etc. to finalize the draft MJNHMP for the review and approval
process. Pages will be reserved to insert documentation of the approval process: FEMA's
"Approvable Pending Adoption" letter; evidence of adoption by each jurisdiction; FEMA's final
approval letters; and FEMA's final Local Mitigation Plan Review Tool.

DELIVERABLES

DLCD 1. Finalized Draft MJNHMP

Target Date: July 2024

PHASE 3: REVIEW AND APPROVAL PROCESS

Purpose

The purpose of Phase 3 is to ensure that all the necessary steps toward final FEMA approval are taken; the JURISDICTIONS each adopt the updated MJNHMP without substantive changes; and FEMA approves the adopted MJNHMP.

This project is funded by a FEMA Hazard Mitigation Grant Program (HMGP) mitigation planning grant. This grant must culminate in an NHMP that is adopted by JURISDICTIONS and approved by FEMA. Therefore, JURISDICTIONS agree not only to consider but also to adopt the NHMP that FEMA has agreed to approve.

If a jurisdiction requires a substantive change through its adoption process, the approval process will be restarted.

Tack 15 Submit Draft MJNHMP for State and Federal Review

On behalf of JURISDICTIONS, DLCD will submit the Draft Linn County MJNHMP to the Oregon Emergency Management (OEM) for review. OEM will review the draft MJNHMP and when it is FEMA-approvable will submit it to FEMA for formal review. DLCD, and JURISDICTIONS will make any necessary revisions with review by the SC and public as appropriate until FEMA issues its APA letter.

DELIVERABLES

DLCD 1. Submit finalized Draft MJNHMP with completed Local Mitigation Plan Review Tool to OEM.

2. Make any required changes in consultation with SC and resubmit until OEM and FEMA are satisfied that the draft MJNHMP is approvable as evidenced by receipt of FEMA's APA letter.

August 2024 Target Date: Submittal to OEM:

> Required Changes Completed: October 2024

December 2024 FEMA Review Completed:

January 2025 APA Received:

Task 16 Adopt Final Draft MJNHMP

JURISDICTIONS will arrange for the FEMA-approvable Final Draft Linn County MJNHMP to be considered for adoption by each of their respective boards and councils. Following adoption, each jurisdiction will submit the evidence of adoption (generally a signed resolution) to DLCD. DLCD will then submit the resolutions to FEMA through OEM for final approval.

DELIVERABLES

Target Date:

1. Provide evidence of adoption to DLCD. SC

DLCD 1. Submit evidence of adoption to OEM.

2. Insert approval process documents into plan.

3. Record effective date on cover.

4. Distribute FEMA-approved, finalized Linn County MJNHMP to SC members.

February 2025

Adoption Completed; Evidence to DLCD:

February 2025 **DLCD Submit Evidence to OEM:**

March 2025 FEMA Final Approval Received:

Final Distribution: March 2025

BUDGET

No funds will be exchanged. DLCD will use HMGP-PF-FM- 5327 grant funds and state funds to execute its tasks. JURISDICTIONS will use their own funds to execute their responsibilities and tasks.

COST SHARE

HMGP grants require a 25% cost share. JURISDICTIONS commit to providing cash, in-kind, or a combination of both as their portion of the required 25% cost share. <u>Federal funds are not allowable as cost share.</u> JURISDICTIONS will report cost share and provide documentation as required to DLCD on at least a quarterly basis. JURISDICTIONS together will provide an estimated cost share of \$35,000, per the December 2021 email from Robert Wheeldon, former Linn County Planning & Building Department Director.